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B-3387 - B-3395 1845-1885 
202-236 E. Cross St. (North side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

The north side of the 200 block of E. Cross St. was developed in an r 
easterly moving direction, beginning from the corner of William St. and moving 
easterly towards Riverside Ave. John T. Grindall built a row of two story plus 
attic, two bay wide brick houses at 202-210 E. Cross St. in the late 1840's, 
contemporaneously with the similar row he built to the north along William St. 
Of this group only 204 and 208 E. Cross St. retain their original exterior form; 
202, 206, and 210 E. Cross St. have been enlarged and are now three stories in 
height with shed roofs and bracketed cornices. 212-222 E. Cross St. is a group 
of three story, mainly three bay wide brick houses (the exceptions are 214 and 216 
which are only two bays wide), with shed roofs and bracketed cornices, built in 
the early 1870's to served a mixed commercial/residential function, as they do 
today. The original Victorian storefront is still intact (though deteriorated) 
at 212 E. Cross St. and is noteworthy as being one of the few surviving Italianate-
style storefronts in the area. At 224-232 E. Cross St. there is a group of two 
story, three bay wide brick houses with shed roofs and bracketed cornices, built 
in the early 1880's by Nicholas Popplein. To the east, at 234-236 E. Cross St. 
is a pair of three story, two bay wide brick houses with shed roofs and bracketed 
cornice, built by Popplein in the same period. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This two story plus attic brick house with gable roof was built in the 
1840's by John T. Grindall, for whom Grindall St. is named, as part of a group 
of four such houses extending along this side of Cross St., 202-208 Cross St. 
The house has been covered with formstone. 

The house is two and a half stories in height, 14' wide, and occupies a 
lot 60' deep. The house is two rooms deep and there is a two story high, three 
bay deep frame rear addition. The house is constructed in running bond, but the 
facade has been covered with formstone. The low-pitched gable roof has a two-tier 
brick cornice. There is a dotible rectangular chimney located along the west side 
of the front roof gable. 

Although the original treatment of the door and window lintels and sills 
has been hidden by the formstone covering, it is apparent that the first and 
second story openings had segmentally arched brick lintels with solid wood 
tympanums, and that the attic story windows had flat lintels. All of the window 
openings are filled with 1/1 double hung sash. There is a Victorian four panel 
door set beneath a single light transom filled with a piece of stained glass. 
The house sits on a fairly high basement, the entrance being reached by four stone 
steps. A square-shaped coal opening is located to the left of the steps. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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See under 1029-1035 William St. 

This house, like its immediate neighbors, was built by Grindall as part of his 
development of the western section of the block bounded by William St., Cross St., 
Riverside Ave., and Grindall St. The house was sold soon after its completion to 
a John J. Weiss, a tailor who lived in this house in the 1850's and 1860's. 

Baltimore City Land Records, Liber AWB 412, Folio 23; Baltimore City Directory, 1851, 
1855-56, 1871 
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204 E. Cross Street 
Block 0937 Lot 024 
Baltimore City 
Baltimore East Quad. 





B-3388 204 E. Cross St. 

M.E.H. 5/79 

South elevation 


